Public Document Pack

CYNGOR .
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir y Fﬂlnt
Head of Legal and Democratic Services Ay . .
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd FllﬁtShII‘E

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: CliIr Carol Ellis (Chair)

. . . CS/NG
Councillors: Marion Bateman, Peter Curtis,
Adele Davies-Cooke, David Evans, Veronica Gay, 26 October 2012
Cindy Hinds, Stella Jones, Brian Lloyd, Mike Lowe,
Dave Mackie, Hilary MCGUi", Gareth Roberts, Tracy Waters 01352 702331

lan Smith and David Wisinger tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,
MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 1ST NOVEMBER, 2012 at 2.00 PM to consider
the following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



BETSI CADWALADR UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD
Presentation from Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board:

Update on service reviews/consultation

Update on locality working

Public Health update

Developments in Children’s Services including CAMHS

NORTH WALES (DRAFT) INFORMATION AND CONSULTATION CARERS
STRATEGY (Pages 1 - 50)

Report of Learning and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Facilitator

ADULT PROTECTION REPORT APRIL 2011 TO MARCH 2012 (Pages 51 -
76)

Report of Director of Community Services
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 77 - 84)
Report of Learning and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Facilitator




Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT BY: OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FACILITATOR

SUBJECT: NORTH WALES (DRAFT) INFORMATION AND

CONSULTATION CARERS STRATEGY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT
To consider the draft North Wales Information and Consultation
Carers Strategy 2012 — 15.

The report will be presented to the Committee by the Head of Service
User Experience, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB).

2.00 BACKGROUND
On 18! January 2012, the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure came in
to force and the guidance for its implementation was issued to Local
Health Boards and Local Authorities.

The North Wales Carers Leads Strategic Group was established in
2011 to oversee the development of a strategy. This group consists of
representatives from BCUHB, the 6 local authorities and the 3 sector
carers organisations.

The North Wales Information and Consultation Strategy 2012-2015
(draft) - attached as appendix 2 - sets out the key actions that are
considered necessary to achieve the cultural change and the
minimum requirements as outlined in the Carers Strategies (Wales)
Measure 2010 guidance document.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

Please see appendix 1 (attached) which outlines the issues of
significance.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee
support the submission of the strategy for approval to Welsh
Government and the ongoing work of the partnership.

Page 1



5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Additional financial implications unknown but anticipated demand for
Carers Needs Assessments

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Positive impact for informal carers

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
N/A.

EQUALITIES IMPACT
Equalities Impact Assessment is currently being undertaken by
BCUHB.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
N/A.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED
With overview and scrutiny committees across North Wales.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN
A multi agency group, with links to carers groups, have developed the
strategy.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Issues of Significance

Appendix 2 - The North Wales Information and Consultation Strategy
2012-2015 (draft)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: Margaret Parry-Jones

Telephone: 01352 702427

Email: Margaret_Parry-Jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 2



Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board Q GIG | Bwrdd lechyd prifysgol

Committee Paper

dL?Q Betsi Cadwaladr

N HS University Health Board

Name of Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Committee:

Subject: North Wales (draft) Information and Consultation Strategy
2012-2015

Summary On 1% January 2012, the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure

or came in to force and the guidance for its implementation was

Issues of issued to the Local Health Boards and Local Authorities.

Significance

There has been a duty on Local Authorities since 1995 to provide
services for Carers and all 6 Local Authorities in North Wales has
an established strategy in place outlining local service provision
for Carers. This is first time legislative duties have been placed
on the NHS in relation to services for carers in Wales.

The purpose of the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010 is
to:-
¢ Create a cultural change so that Carers are empowered in
the decision making processes around care management

e Ensure that Carers’ issues are mainstreamed into the
everyday working practices of NHS and other staff;

¢ Facilitate early identification of Carers by Health Service
professionals;

e Ensure that Carers receive earlier and more planned
support through local partnerships or joint commissioning
involving the NHS, Local Authorities, the Third sector and
the private sector;

One of the requirement’s of the Carers Strategies (Wales)
Measure 2010 is that the NHS and Local Authorities work in
partnership to prepare, publish and implement a local Information
and Consultation Strategy for Carers.

The North Wales Carers leads Strategic Group was established in
2011 to oversee this work. This group consists of representatives
from BCUHB, the 6 local authorities and the 3™ sector carers
organisations.

The North Wales Information and Consultation Strategy (2012-
2015) sets out the key actions that are considered necessary to
achieve the cultural change and the minimum requirements as
outlined in the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010 guidance
document.

Strong and effective parinerships will be crucial to enable the

Page S




successful delivery of these challenging key actions.

Of particular note for the partnership is the:

e The strategy has the potential to strengthen carer
information services

e Improvements in joint working

e Potential increase in referrals for support to the Carers
Outreach Centres

e Potential increase in the number of referrals for Carers
Needs Assessment and subsequent increase in Carers
Needs Assessment process

e Potential increase in demand for services

e Good practice recommendation with the Carers Strategies
(Wales) Measure 2010 guidance document that
organisations (including GP’s) request to see a copy of the
Carers Needs Assessment

e Performance monitoring framework; need to develop joint
reporting systems

Strategic Theme /
Priority / Values
addressed by this

paper

Making it safe / better / sound / work / happen

Healthcare
Standard
addressed

Standard 2: Equality, Diversity & Human Rights

Standard 5: Citizen Engagement & Feedback

Standard 6: Participating in Quality Improvement Activities
Standard 9: Patient Information & Consent

Standard 10: Dignity & Respect

Equality Impact
Assessment
(EqlA)

The FREDA (Equality) principles are embedded within the
discussions within the North Wales Carers Leads Strategy Group
and will be implicit throughout the strategy.

An EqlA impact assessment is currently being undertaken.

Recommendations:

The North Wales Adult Service Heads support the submission of
the strategy for approval to Welsh Government and the ongoing
work of the partnership.

| Author(s)

| Dawn Cooper, Head of Service User Experience

| Presented by

| Dawn Cooper, Head of Service User Experience

| Date of report

| October 2012

| Date of meeting

| 1% November 2012

BCUHB Committee Coversheet v5.02

Disclosure:

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board is the operational name of Betsi Cadwaladr University Local Health Board

Page 4




Appendix 1

GlG 1rr1:i|t\'1, Pfgl
NHS | ety et s
&

WP.J X hOF(“ " ” gnddmedolaeth cargrstrust o
UNI.I.&IS sith Dyiwial Gotaboit go awgr 1 Mekwork

C.yrersl:I itreae hﬁervce Fartnar Aimyehi

w- { CYNGOR
. Sir Ddinbych r Sir v Fflint R,
\.xlt’\hdm % . J/. Y g ISLE OF ANGLESEY
-l Denbighshire FII“iShII’E %

o Sm COUNTY COUNCIL
wrecsam

SERVICE

FAVOW == @

hiys .
action for s
, children ConNnwy
Barnardo's gweithredu Crniees pumeEsTREr Sitot
Cymru dros blant

North Wales Carers Information and
Consultation Strategy

2012 - 2015

Draft 14

Page 5



Contents Page

1. INtroducCtion.......... e ————— 4
2. Definition of @ Carer........... i ———— 5
R TR = 1o o T 5
L BT o o o =Y P SN 5-6
5. Carers Profile.........cooriiiiiii s 6-7
< =T o 1= - 11 o T 7
7. Impact of Caring........cccccevviiiiiimrirnrerccesssssssssss s e e e e e s erennnn s assssrrernnnnns 7-10
8. Core Principles for Working with Carers........cccccoeeeeeeeiiiiinrceeeneennes 10-11
9. Aims of the Information and Consultation Strategy..........ccccceeeeeeee... 11
TR O T ¢ 1= 2 (L= 11-12
11. What are the Current Organisational Arrangements for the

Benefit of Carers in North Wales?.........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiieenes 12
12. How does this Strategy link with other National and Local

Policies/Strategies?.........cccorriiiiiiiimreerccessr s 1213
13. Where do we need to be?..........ii 14-17
14. Information ProviSion.............cccciiiiiiiiiir e e 17-20
15. Communications and Consultation............ccccoooinnnineinnenennnnees 20-21
ST I = 113 1] 3 T T 21-23
17. Implementation............e e 23-25
K- 01", o 4 1) o o 1 Ve 25-26
References....... e ———————— 27

Page 6



Y o o 7= 3o [ o == 3PS 28

Appendix 1 — Legislation..............cccooiiiiiiiii 29-33
Appendix 2 - Information Leaflet.......................oo 33-36
Appendix 3 - List of Carer Support Agencies............cccccceeeeiiiiieeiiciiiinn, 37
Appendix 4 — Baseline: Carers Information requirements................. 38-40
Appendix 5 - Training Framework...................ccccovvieiiiiiiee 41-43
Appendix 6 - Performance Framework......................coocoii i, 44

Page 7



1. Introduction

Carers*' are a vital and central part of the whole health and community care
system; they make an enormous contribution to society. It is important that
statutory organisations acknowledge this, listen to their point of view,
acknowledge their expertise and work in partnership with them to respond
practically to their needs.

Local Authorities (usually through their Social Services Departments) have
long had responsibility for meeting carer’'s needs. However, evidence indicates
that 4 out of 5 carers state that their first point of contact with any statutory
agency is via the community based health services. To ensure earlier
identification and support for carers, and enhance the existing service
provision the Carers Strategies (Wales) Regulations 2011 were passed and on
1%t January 2012, the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure (2010) came into
force.

The Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure (2010) requires Betsi Cadwaladr
University Local Health Board (BCUHB) and the 6 Local Authorities in North
Wales to work in partnership with carers, statutory and non-statutory
organisations to prepare and publish a Carers Information and Consultation
Strategy setting out how they will work together to assist and include carers in
the arrangement made for those they care for.

As a result of this, In January 2011 partnership organisations in North Wales
formed the North Wales Carers Leads Strategic Group (NWCLSG). The aim of
this group is to utilise an integrated approach for the development of the North
Wales Carers Information Strategy. This partnership consists of
representatives of BCUHB, Local Authority Carers Leads and various Third
Sector Carers Organisations.

This 3 year strategy places an emphasis on the statutory duties that BCUHB
will fulfil in order to comply with the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010;
each local authority in North Wales also has their own Carers Strategy and the
intention is that this strategy will complement the existing Local Authority
strategies rather than supersede them.

" When referring to carers in this document, it means unBagaer&f all ages and background unless specified otherwise

4



2. Definition of a Carer

A carer is a person who provides or intends to provide a substantial amount of
care on a regular basis for:

(a) a child who is disabled within the meaning of part 3 of the Children
Act 1989, or
(b) an individual aged 18 or over

The above definition does not include an individual who provides or intends to
provide that care:

(a) by virtue of a contract of employment or other contract with any
person, or
(b) as a volunteer for any organisation (whether or not incorporated)

(Welsh Government 2012)

It is acknowledged that although this definition is useful for clarification to
assist professionals to identify carers; A significant number of people with
caring responsibilities do not readily identify themselves as carers and
understandably see themselves primarily as a parent, spouse, son, daughter,
neighbour or friend. (HM Government 2010)

There are additional challenges in the identification of young carers as these
children often remain “hidden” from the statutory services due to concern
about the reaction of others and have the added fear of “being taken into care”
and bullying by their peers, this is particularly the case for children whose
parents have drug and alcohol problems.

3. Vision

To develop a culture that understands and respects the experience and
knowledge of carers. The needs of carers will be mainstreamed into everyday
practice to ensure that carers are supported in their caring role, and are able to
maintain their own independence whilst protecting their health and wellbeing.

4. Scope
This strategy sets out the direction for the next 3 years and provides an
overarching framework to support collaborative working with service users and

carers.

The strategy is relevant to:-
Page 9



Carers and service users

Staff employed by BCUHB

Staff employed by the 6 local authorities in North Wales

GP’s and practice staff

Independent contractors

Staff in residential homes, commissioned to support carers that are
statutorily funded

e Stakeholders and partnership agencies, including the Community Health
Council, Third Sector Voluntary Organisations and community groups

5. Carers Profile
5.1 National Profile

In a study carried out by the Care Council for Wales (2010) it was estimated a
staggering 96% of the annual care hours in Wales are provided by unpaid
carers with the remaining 4% provided by local authorities and independent
providers.

The 2001 Census identified that there are 340,000 carers in Wales (equivalent
to 11% of the population), and this number was projected to rise to 369,628 by
2011, of these:-

e 61.1% provide care for between 1-19 hours per week
e 12.6% provide care for between 20-49 hours per week
o 23.7% provide care of 50 hours or more per week.

The 2001 Census identified that there were over 4,600 young carers (age <18)
in Wales. . However given the census makes no mention of alcohol or drug
problems, carers’ organisations believe the figures are much higher with many
young -carers remaining ‘hidden’ due to the stigma attached to these
conditions. More recently in a report commissioned on behalf of the Children
Commissioner for Wales, colleagues in Welsh Government have quoted the
number of young carers in Wales at 11,000 (Powys Carers Service 2009).

5.2 North Wales Profile

More recent data provided from the Welsh Health Survey 2008 (source
www.daffodilcymru.org.uk ) would indicate that the number of carers in North
Wales has increased and this increase is predicted to rise year on year due to
the ageing population.

Page 10



Table 1: Predicted number of carers in North Wales by 2015(Welsh Health

Survey 2008)
No. of hours of unpaid
care provided per week
Age of | <19 hrs | 20-49 >50 hrs
carer hrs Total
16-24 7,896 2,254 2,871 13,021
25-64 37,864 | 10,327 | 13,769 | 61,960
65 > 17,334 | 4,727 6,303 | 28,364
Total carer population for BCUHB | 103,345

It is acknowledged that the current available data is an underestimate of the
total carer population as this data only includes young carers from the age of
16; whereas anecdotal evidence from carer support organisations, children’s
charities and local authority carers leads would indicate that there is a
significant number of young carers below the age of 16.

6. Legislation

There is a range of legislation that places a duty on local authorities and the
health service to provide good quality support to carers (see appendix 1). This
strategy has been produced in response to the most recent legislation; the
Carers Strategies (Wales) Regulations were passed in December 2011. On 1°
January 2012, the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure came into force and the
guidance for implementation of the Measure was issued to Local Health
Boards and Local Authorities.

For the first time, this Measure places a legislative duty on the NHS in relation
to services for carers in Wales.

7. Impact of Caring

Whilst there are many rewards from providing care to a loved one, there is a
growing body of evidence indicating that caring can have a detrimental impact

on the physical, emotional and mental health of carers, and that their health is
increasingly at risk as their caring responsibilities increase.

Page 11



‘I get tired at times and lonely.... We
used to do everything together but
this is not possible now”

“‘My Mum has
Alzheimer’s and both my
sister and | work full
time.. we find it difficult
to juggle jobs and care
for our mum”

“Sometimes | am
very stressed....
Need time for me”

“I feel
isolated....”

(quotes from North Wales Carers Leads Strategy Group Survey 2012)

7.1 Adult Carers
In the 2001 Census it was identified that carers in Wales were a third more
likely to suffer ill health.

Carers who provide high levels of care for sick or disabled relatives and friends
are more than twice as likely to suffer poor health compared to people without
caring responsibilities. An analysis of the census demonstrates that nearly
21% of carers providing over 50 hours per week of care say they are in poor
health compared to nearly 11%o0f the non-carer population. In a more recent
study 70% of older carers reported caring to be having a devastating impact on
their mental and physical health. (The princess Royal Trust for Carers 2011)

The recent Carers Week survey ‘In Sickness and in Health’ polling some

3,400 carers across the UK cited the main issues affecting their health as:
e anxiety or stress (91 per cent),

depression (53 per cent),

injury such as back pain (36 per cent),

high blood pressure (22 per cent)

the deterioration of an existing condition (26 per cent).

Older carers, those 60+, are the fastest growing demographic of carers
and also those most likely to have multiple caring responsibilities.
Although on average, 12% of the population provide unpaid care for a friend or
family member, this increases to 18% for those aged 55-64, 16% for those
aged 65-74 and 13% for those aged 75 and above

Page 12



7.2 Young Carers

Young carers report positive and negative elements to providing care; the
positive aspects are that they have sense of closeness to the person(s) they
are caring for, they feel mature and value the skills they gain from caring.
(Social Care Institute for Excellence 2005)

The research evidence indicates that the impact of the caring role on young
carers is far reaching and includes the following risks:

Difficulties in attending school
Truancy

Under achievement

Isolation

Subject to bullying from peers
Mental and Physical ill health
Poverty

Stress

(Social Care Institute for Excellence 2005;
Crossroads Caring for Carers & The Princess Royal Trust for Carers,
November 2008)

Page 13



It is also acknowledged that these risks are particularly acute for young people
who are caring for parents who misuse alcohol or drugs and parents with
mental health problems. (Crossroads Caring for Carers & The Princess Royal
Trust for Carers, November 2008)

“Sometimes | wish |
could go out with my
friends or have them
to stay but | don'’t feel
Jealous of them. |
think | am a bit more
grown up than them.

“None of her school friends
know what her life is like at
home.”.. “I don’t tell them
because they make fun of
people who have things
like my mum and my
brother do”

“‘When I try to talk to
people like doctors or
social workers some of
them don't really listen to
me because they think |
am too younq”

“l always worry about him
but | know he is being
looked after. | can’t really
talk about it with my friends
because they don't really
understand what it is like

The Powys Carers Service (2009) report is the first comprehensive piece of
research examining first hand experiences of young carers here in Wales.

“Young carers are expected to take on many responsibilities which are
inappropriate for their age and often with little support. Paid carers receive
training and support that most young carers as well as adult carers do not
receive.” Many young carers for example (50% of those surveyed) administer
medicines to those they care for and yet 73% said they received no training on
how to do it. Manual handling is another similar story.

8. Core Principles for Working with Carers

This strategy and accompanying action plan will be underpinned by the
following core principles:-

Page 14
10



Carers are equal partners in care

No assumptions are made regarding a carer’s capacity or carers’
capacities and willingness to take responsibility for, or continue to care
Support carers to be as physically and mentally well as possible and
prevent ill health

Carers will be involved in decision making and choices at all levels and
at all stages in the caring role, in a positive, timely and proactive way
Provide care and support with flexibility and understanding in a
personalised way that reflects the circumstances, cultural background
and lifestyle of the carer.

Respect and recognise that carers will have their own support needs,
rights and aspirations, which may be different from those of the cared for
person.

Identify, support and enable both children and young people who are
carers to be young as well as carers. Provide support and a safe
environment to help them learn, develop and enjoy positive childhoods
Recognise the experience of carers as the caring role ends and after it
has ended and offer support to carers accordingly

(Skills for Care 2011)

9. Aims of the Information and Consultation Strategy

The five key aims of this strategy are to ensure:

Carers’ issues are mainstreamed into the everyday working practices of
NHS and other staff.

Carers are allowed to make a choice about the level of care they wish to
provide

Core information for carers is available and accessible regardless of
where the carer lives

Carers are recognised and listened to; ensuring they are true partners in
care

Staff training and development will enable staff at all levels to support
carers appropriately

10. Objectives

10.1 All professionals within the NHS and Local Authorities will be made aware
of their responsibilities in relation to the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure
through opportunistic awareness raising and staff training.

10.2 Carers will ‘be identified at the earliest opportunity.

Page 15
11



10.3 Carers will be given sufficient timely information® according to their
individual needs.

10.4 Where patient consent is withheld, carers will be provided with as much
information that can be shared without breaching patient confidentiality to
enable them to carry out their caring role safely

10.5 Every carer will be informed of their legislative right to an independent
assessment of their support needs as a carer

10.6 Carers will be involved as a matter of course in all decision making
processes around care management

10.7 NHS staff are able to signpost identified carers to carer support
organisations

11. What are the Current Organisational Arrangements for the Benefit of
Carers in North Wales?

BCUHB and the 6 local authorities’ commission the services of Third Sector
Carers Organisations and provide core funding for these services. These
organisations act as the main resource for carers, providing information,
training and support. The local authorities and health board also provide
funding for respite care and short breaks for carers.

BCUHB will continue working with statutory partners, independent providers
and the Third Sector Organisations to develop and align current services to
meet the needs of Carers and the requirements of the Carers Measure and to
ensure sustainability of services for the benefit of Carers.

12. How does this Strategy link with other National and Local
Policies/Strategies?

In recognition of the importance of the role carer’'s play and the need to provide
support to them in their work the Carers (recognition and Services) Act 1995
was passed (see Appendix 1, A1.2). Since then a number of key pieces of
legislation and national strategies have been produced to ensure that carers
are supported in their role. The NWCLSG has referred to the legislation
outlined in Appendix 1 and the following key national and local strategy
documents to inform their work:

2 All written information will be available in a bilinge? aget (W&Ish and English)
12



12.1 National Strategies

Carers Strategy for Wales Action Plan (Welsh Assembly
Government 2007); this strategy recognised that carers have need of
their own and set out the strategic direction to ensure better assessment
and care management arrangements were in place and there was more
constructive engagement with carers as key partners in care,

Older Peoples National Service Framework (Welsh Assembly
Government, 2006); this framework advocated involving carers in the
Unified Assessment process and providing them with up to date
information.

Together for Health (Welsh Government 2011); this five year vision for
the NHS in Wales emphasises the importance of utilising the 3" Sector
to support carers.

Wales Accord for Sharing Personal Information (Welsh Assembly
Government 2010); this is a framework outlining a common set of
principles and standards which govern the activity of information sharing.
This Accord will be used to develop an Information Sharing Pathway for
Carers.

Sustainable Social Services for Wales: Framework for Action
(Welsh Government 2011); this framework sets out the priorities for
reshaping social services and emphasises that service users and carers
will be given a stronger voice and greater control over the services they
use.

12.2 Local Strategies/Policies

Local Authority Carers Strategies. Each of the six local authorities has
a Carers Strategy in place which outlines the plans, procedures and
services available for carers in their local community.

The Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010: Part 1 Scheme: Local
Primary Mental Health Support Services; this is a joint regional
scheme for North Wales which determines how the statutory partners are
to formally meet the requirements of Section 2, Part 1 of the Measure.
This scheme, where appropriate includes reference to carers as partners
in care.

Health Social Care and Wellbeing Strategies. All six local authorities
have a Health Social Care and Wellbeing Strategy in place and each
refers to the importance of supporting carers and outlines the plans and
objectives in relation to carers.

Children and Young Peoples Partnerships. All six local authorities
have a Children and Young People Partnership group and plans and
refer to identification and support of young carers

BCUHB Equalities and Diversity policy

BCUHB Discharge Protocol (2012). This protocol outlines the
discharge processes for patients within BCUHB and its six local partner
authorities. The protocol refers to carers throughout the various

Page 17
13



processes and emphasises the importance of involving carers in the

discharge process as an equal partner in care.

13. Where do we need to be?

There are a number of “pockets of good practice” in North Wales in relation to
service provision for carers, however, in some areas carers feel isolated,
excluded from care planning and unsupported (North Wales Carers Survey

2012).

In order to achieve our vision of mainstreaming carers’ issues into everyday
practice within BCUHB, there are a number of challenges ahead and this
strategy outlines the key actions that will need to take place.

As this is a 3 year strategy the work programme for the partnership (NWCSLG)
will be arranged as follows:

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Engage and consult
with carers and relevant
stakeholders

Pilot service
developments in
relation to information
provision and
consultation (using
improvement
methodology)

Evaluate Service
developments

Review current
information provision
and consultation with
carers

Develop systems for
evaluation (to include
outcome measures)

Engagement and
consultation events with
carers for formal
evaluation of the
strategy

Explore options for
service development

Spread service
development initiatives

Make recommendations

Develop systems and
processes to support
service development

Monitor service
provision (by continuous
feedback systems)

Agree Changes

(NB: this is an outline of how the work programme will be progressed; a
detailed action plan will be developed outlining how these broad actions will be

undertaken)

Page 18

14



13.1 Identification and Signposting of Carers

Carers have told us that they often have had to wait until a crisis happens
before they have any support. Systems and processes will be put in place at
BCUHB to ensure carers are identified at the earliest opportunity and they will
be signposted to the relevant agencies for support. This requires carer
awareness to be integrated into everyday working practices; this will be
achieved by:

Key Actions: Identification and Signposting of Carers
Year 1
e Provision of Carer Awareness training for all frontline staff at BCUHB
and General Practitioner Practices, which emphasises the need for
early identification of carers.

e Develop BCUHB Carer Information leaflet(s) (which includes a
section on young carers —see Appendix 2). These leaflets will be
available in all clinical areas within the Health Board (to include GP
surgeries/community clinics etc). The information leaflets have been
developed following consultation with carers via the North Wales
Carers Survey (2012) and focus groups at the various carers support
groups. The aim of these leaflets is to provide an initial introduction
to the carers support agencies and inform carers of their rights to a
Carers Needs Assessment.

Year 2
o Adapt recording systems to ensure questions in relation to carers will
be included as part of the routine history taking process when health
service users come in to contact with a service.

13.2 Referral for Carer Support

There are .a number of carer support organisations in North Wales (see
appendix 3). Carers have told us that the carer support organisations have
been an ‘invaluable source of information” and find them very helpful for
‘befriending” and “just knowing there is someone at the end of the phone”.
(North Wales Carers Survey, 2012)

Referrals to these organisations are low from health organisations and tend to
be self referrals or via social workers, often the referrals are when the carer
has reached the end of their “tether” or when a crisis occurs. The early
identification of carers and referral by the health professionals to the support

organisations should improve this situation (see 12.2.1 below).
Page 19

15



13.2.1 Carers Needs Assessments

These are currently undertaken by the Local Authority or in some areas of
North Wales the Carer Support Organisations are commissioned to carry out
assessments on behalf of the Local Authorities. The assessment process is
designed to assess what help and support the carer requires to undertake the
caring role as well as maintaining their life outside of this role. Early
identification of carers by Health Board staff will enable carers to be referred
for this assessment in a timelier manner this will be facilitated by:

Key Actions: Carers Needs Assessments

Year 1
e Develop a formal referral system for NHS staff to refer adult carers
for support or/and a Carers Needs Assessment

e NHS staff training will educate all staff about the specific issues for
young carers and the need for referral for support using the “Child in
Need” process

e Develop systems to monitor referrals to Carer Support organisations

e Develop systems to monitor referrals for Carers Needs Assessments

Year 2/3
e The impact of earlier identification of carers is unknown; therefore the
potential for an increase in the number of referrals for a Carers
Needs Assessment will be monitored to consider capacity issues and
implications for future services
e The partnership will explore solutions in anticipation of rise in demand
for Carers Needs Assessment and services

13.2.2 Sharing of Carers Needs Assessments

The Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010: guidance document (Welsh
Government 2012) outlines a best practice recommendation that (with carers
consent) organisations, including GP’s, should request to see a copy of the
Carers Needs Assessments. This will help staff to better meet the information,
communication and consultation needs of carers; this will be facilitated by:

Page 20
16



Key Actions: Sharing of Carers Needs Assessments

Year 2
e Develop an Information Sharing Protocol in partnership with Third
sector, Local Authorities and General Practitioners

o Development of systems to request/share information

14. Information provision

Each of the carers support organisations® in North Wales provides an
information pack to carers when they access their services. These packs vary
in content, but all contain information on carer's right to a Carers Needs
Assessment and what additional support is available in the area, such as
financial help, respite care and short breaks.

In addition in some areas there are information packs specifically for young
carers containing age appropriate information on their right and entitlements as
young carers.

The 6 Local Authorities in North Wales also provide carers with information
outlining their rights and what additional support is available, via information
leaflets and their websites.

The Carers strategies (Wales) Measure 2010; guidance document outlines a
baseline of information requirements for carers (see appendix 4), and suggests
that this can be built upon as every carer will have differing information needs.

A gap analysis of the information provided by the local authorities and third
sector carers organisations has indicated that there is range of information
available to carers, sometimes this is duplicated and in some areas there are
gaps in provision.

This will be addressed by

Key Actions: Information provision

Year 1
e Exploring the feasibility of developing a core information pack for
carers and a similar pack tailored to the information needs of young
carers that will address the baseline requirements outlined in Carers
Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010 guidance document (see
Appendix 4); the aim of this pack will be to ensure all carers are

* Carers Outreach Service North West Wales (covering Anglesey, Gwynedd, Conwy); North East Wales Information
Service NEWCIS covering Denbighshire & Flintshire);la@g’@x@lﬂl Carers Service

17



aware of their rights and available support regardless of their age or
where they live.

14.1 Information Provision by Health Services

There is specific guidance in the Carers strategies (Wales) Measure 2010
guidance document in relation to hospital discharge and transfers of care and
states that as a minimum there should be:

¢ Information about the support and follow up available on discharge for
the carer and the patient; including the practicalities of the process,
timing, medication rights to assessment etc.

e Carers will be given sufficient information that enables them to perform
their future role safely and with the necessary skills and knowledge to
make informed choices about capacity to meet the needs of the patient
who becomes the person cared for both on discharge and over time.
(Personal and often sensitive information relating to the individual patient
about the diagnosis, prognosis and treatment and management both in
hospital and afterwards is often withheld from carers; This information
needs to be provided to assist the carer to decide if they want to be a
carer and to enable them to choose the level of responsibility they wish
to take).

In some areas of the Health Board, individual service areas (such as Cancer
Services) have produced information for carers or hold a small supply of the
local carers support organisations’ information pack. However, feedback from
carers and service users would indicate that information provision and
recognition of carers needs by health service professionals is lacking. (North
Wales Carers Leads Strategy Group Survey 2012)

Page 22
18



‘My  partner has
been diagnosed with
cancer, | feel like |
am learning as | go
along”

“My wife is in hospital and | need
information about help when she
comes home..... no information
given so far”

“l have no emotional
support or
information from GP”

‘I was not involved in my
fathers discharge
arrangements, just told he was
coming home next day and |
was expected to manage. |
was made to feel quilty for
objecting until preparations at
home could be made”

The Health Board will address this by:

Key Actions: Information Provision by Health Services

Year 1

e Develop web pages on the BCUHB website to provide information
packs online and relevant information for carers

e Develop guidance for staff when consent is withheld to share
information, to ensure carers are provided with sufficient information
as can be shared without breaching patient confidentiality to enable
them to care safely.

o Staff training sessions will emphasise the need for staff to involve
carers throughout the patient journey.

Page 23
19



Year 2
e Develop an Information Provision Framework for Carers (adults) that
will outline the key stages for information provision throughout the
patient/carer journey. This framework will cover all forms of
information provision (not just written information) and will also include
key stages for discussion with carer such as pre-discharge meeting
with key health professionals.

e Develop an Information Provision Framework for Young Carers that
will outline the key stages for information provision throughout the
patient/carer journey. This framework will include the information
provided for adult carers, but this will be tailored for age
appropriateness and will also include guidance on inappropriate tasks
such as administering medications, manual handling etc.

e |n addition to BCUHB core Information for carers, service specific
information will be produced, for example, information for carers of
people with mental health issues re their legislative rights.

e Carers lead to contribute to ongoing work between BCUHB and its
partners to develop a single point of access within the local
communities. The single point of access will be a valuable resource
for information for service users and carers.

Year 3
e Arrange comprehensive evaluation of information pathway to assess
if objectives outlined in section 9 have been met

15. Communications and Consultation

One of the key aims of this strategy is to ensure that carers are “recognised as
true partners in care”. Therefore to make this a reality it is vital that carers are
engaged in the care planning process as soon as practicable, before decisions
are made and the carers’ knowledge of the person who is being cared for is
listened to. This engagement should involve providing and seeking information
from carers in a language or medium that they understand and is age
appropriate.  The Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010: guidance
document (Welsh Government 2012) states a minimum requirement that when
carers are asked to attend consultation events, organisations must provide
Page 24

20



sufficient advance notice to enable carer involvement and offer reimbursement
of travel and subsistence costs and replacement care costs.

This will be addressed by:

Key Actions: Communications and Consultation

Year 1
e Map current arrangements for carer engagement, to include funding
sources for expenses when attending involvement events
e Consult with carers and carer support agencies on preferred
methods for carer engagement and feedback
e In partnership with local authorities and third sector organisations
agree an infrastructure to allow effective engagement with carers
Year 2
e Develop an involvement framework that ensures all ages and carers
from all groups (in particular hard to reach groups) are included.

e Include key points for carer involvement in the Information for
Carers Pathway (see section 13.1).

16. Training
A comprehensive training framework is essential to ensure that:

e Carers’ issues are mainstreamed into the everyday working practices of
NHS and other staff.

e Carers are prepared and supported in their role a comprehensive training
framework is essential.

A draft training framework has been produced and this is being considered by
the partnership. (see appendix 5)

16.1 Staff Training

At present there is no formal training plan for NHS staff in relation to carers.
Some of the local authorities and Third sector organisations provide training for
staff and invite NHS staff to attend, however, this is not consistent across
North Wales and attendance by NHS staff is patchy. Staff training will be
addressed by: (see overleaf)

Page 25
21



Key Actions: Staff Training (see Training Framework Appendix 5)

Year 1
e Set up a training sub-group of the NWCLSG to further develop the
training framework, setting out the priorities for staff training.

e The first priority will be to commission basic Carer Awareness Training
for all existing frontline Health Board staff (this will include utilising
current training programmes where possible)

e Complete application process to ensure level 1 training is mandatory
for all BCUHB staff

e Review Health Board core induction programme, with a view to
incorporate carer awareness into the current programme

Year 2
¢ |dentify core competencies for Health Board staff who require Level 2
& 3 training

e Develop lesson plans for Level 2 and 3 training and explore the training
methods to be used, such as e-learning, carers’ stories, workshops etc.

e Deliver training framework which will be adapted to the level of contact
and involvement staff are likely to have with carers in their day to day
work

Year 3
e Evaluate training framework

16.2 Carers Training

In order to prepare carers for their role and to ensure they can continue to
have a life alongside and beyond the caring role, it is imperative that they are
given the relevant skills and knowledge. At present carers in North Wales are
offered “Look After Me” courses which focuses on carer wellbeing and is
delivered via the Education Programme for Patients (EPP Cymru). Local
Authorities in North Wales commission training for carers to be delivered by
the Carers Centres and this trairg\é; m?/ include sessions such as manual

ge 26

22



handling, first aid, and some condition specific training courses, but there is no
formal training programme for carers available.

This will be addressed by:

Key Actions: Carers Training

Year 1
e Consult with carers about their training requirements and preferred
learning methods

e Set up Carers Training Group to include carer representation who
will advise on course content (this group will also look at young carer
training.

e Exploring the feasibility of adding to the “Looking After Me”
programme to include core skills such as manual handling,
medicines management etc

e Map current carers training programmes for provision and content,
with a view to developing standard training programme

Year 2
e Develop and deliver training framework for carers

Year 3
e Evaluate training programme

17. Implementation

To enable successful implementation of this strategy, existing partnerships
between, BCULHB, local authorities, private nursing homes and third sector
organisation will be utilised and further developed.

The North Wales Carers Strategic Leads Group (NWCSLG) was formed in
January 2011. The purpose of this group is to develop an integrated approach
across North Wales for engagement with and the development of services for
carers of all ages; and to develop an integrated North Wales regional strategy
for carers as described in the Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010
guidance document. (see appendix 5Fg.

age 27

23



This group will continue to meet and will act as the partnership working group
to take forward the action outlined in this strategy.

The BCUHB Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure2010 Project Board (which
includes representation from local authorities and the third sector) will
scrutinise the work of the NWCSLG and provide advice and assurance to the
Health Board to ensure that it meets its responsibilities with regard to the
Carers Measure.

To ensure that there is engagement from staff in the clinical areas there is an
operational group consisting of Health Board staff; the purpose of this group is
to provide the specialist knowledge of the clinical areas, disseminate
information within the Clinical Programme Groups (CPG), develop CPG
specific action plans and advise how the actions within the strategy would be
taken forward in each area.

17.1 Staff Infrastructure for Implementation

In order to ensure the required culture change occurs within the Health Board
it is important to have a robust infrastructure in place that will ensure carers’
needs are taken in to account when planning, reviewing, delivering and
evaluating services. BCUHB will facilitate this by:

Key Actions: Staff Infrastructure for Implementation

Year 1

¢ |dentify an Executive Lead for delivery of the Carers Strategies
(Wales Measure) 2010

¢ |dentify a strategic Lead to ensure development of the Carers
Information and Consultation Strategy, and be the key link for
liaison with local authorities carers leads and third sector carers
organisations

e Employ a Carers Co-ordinator whose main role will be to oversee
the operational implementation of the Carers Strategies (Wales
Measure) 2010 at BCUHB, with a particular emphasis on raising
awareness and staff training

¢ |dentify a non-officer member of the Health Board to be the
designated Carers Champion

e Develop role specification for Carers Champion in clinical areas

Year 2
e |dentify Carers Champio ithinGP surgeries, clinics, hospital
wards rﬁa\ﬁé EEG

24



Alongside the structures described above, partnerships with local authorities
and third sector carers’ organisations will be strengthened by conducting joint
events wherever possible such as training and consultation events.

18. Monitoring

The following performance measures will be implemented to assess the
successful implementation of the strategy (as per the Welsh Government
Performance Monitoring framework):-

% of Carers identified by the partnership

% of staff within the partnership area who have undertaken training
% of carers who have been referred for an assessment

% of carers who take up an assessment

Alongside the Welsh Government Performance Reporting Framework the
partnership will also attempt to assess the following outcome measures:

e Carers report that they have been treated by health and social care staff
as key partners in the provision of care

e Carers report that they received sufficient information to enable them to
undertake their role

e Carers Centres reporting an increase in referrals from health and social
care providers

These outcome measures will be monitored by ensuring continuous
engagement with carers, regular audits and evaluation of training sessions.
The key actions outlined in this strategy will be monitored quarterly by the
BCUHB Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure2010 Project Board and the
NWCLSG. (See reporting framework Appendix 6)

It is acknowledged that comprehensive monitoring and evaluation of the
outcomes for carers will present a challenge to the partnership due to differing
information systems;

This will be facilitated by: (see overleaf)

Page 29
25



PPPPPP



References

Care Council for Wales (2010), Challenges, possibilities and implications
for the workforce in Wales.

Crossroads Caring for Carers & The Princess Royal Trust for Carers (2008),
At What Cost to Young Carers? An economic assessment of the value of
young carers’ interventions for young carers affected by parental
substance misuse and mental health problems.

HM Government (2010) Recognised, valued and supported: next steps
Carers Strategy;www.dh.gov.uk/publications

Powys Carers Service (2009), “Full of Care: Young Carers in Wales”

Skills for Care & Skills for Care (2011), Carers Matter — Everybody’s
Business part two: A guide to support carers through staff learning and
development, Leeds.

Social Care Institute for Excellence (2005), Research Briefing 11: The health
and wellbeing of young carers;
www.scie.orq.uk/publications/briefing11/index.asp

The Princess Royal Trust for Carers (2011) Always on call, always
concerned, Essex

Welsh Government (2012) Carers strategies (Wales) Measure 2010:
Guidance Issued to Local Health Boards and Local Authorities, Cardiff.

Page 31
27



QO

—
&

Page 32

28



Appendix 1
Legislation

A1.1 Carers Strategies (Wales) Measure 2010

“The purpose of this Measure is to enable the National Assembly to legislate to
introduce a new requirement on the NHS and Local Authorities in Wales (“the
relevant authorities”) to work in partnership to prepare, publish and implement
a joint strategy in relation to carers.

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-legislation/bus-leqgislation/bus
legislation meas-cs.htm

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-business-fourth-assembly-laid-
docs.htm

http:www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi

A1.2 Carers (Recognition and Services) Act 1995

This was the first piece of legislation that gave rights to carers of all ages who
provided regular and substantial care. This contains the core statutory
responsibilities and requires local authorities to carry out an assessment of a
carer’s ability to provide and continue to provide care, if the carer requests this,
at the time of the assessment of the person they care for.

http://www.leqislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1995/12/contents

A1.3 Carers and Disabled Children’s Act 2000

This Act gave Carers a right to ask for an assessment even when the person
they were caring for refused an assessment. It also gave Local Authorities the
power to provide services directly to Carers and to provide Direct Payments to
Carers.

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/16/contents

A1.4 Community Care (Delayed Discharges) Act 2000

It states that when a Carers asks for an assessment, Social Services in
consultation with their partners in the NHS, must determine what service it will
provide for the Carer when the cared for is ready for discharge.

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/5/contents

Page 33
29



A1.5 Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004

This places a duty on Local Authorities to inform Carers of their right to a
Carers assessment. It also ensures that Carers leisure, lifelong learning and
employment opportunities must be taken into account when carrying out an
assessment. It gives

Local Authorities the power to enlist the help of Housing, Education and Health
in providing support to Carers.

http://www.leqislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/15/contents

A1.6 Children Act 1989
Young Carers can be identified as a ‘child in need’.

http://www.leqgislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/41/contents

A1.7 Children and Young Persons Act 2008
This requires local authorities to make adequate arrangements for short break
provision for Disabled Children.

http://www.leqislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/23/contents

A1.8 Disabled Persons (Services, Consultation and Representation) Act
1986

This requires local authorities to have regard to the ability of the carer to
provide or continue to provide care when deciding what services to provide to
the disabled person.

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1986/33

A1.9 Education Act 2002, Section 175
Section 175 concerns the duties of Local Education Authorities and governing
bodies in relation to the welfare of children

http://www.leqislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2002/32/contents

A1.10 [JFor each of the detaining Sections of the Mental Health Act 1983
there are duties placed on Hospital Managers (and sometimes others) to
provide written and oral information to patients (and in some cases their
nearest relative, which may not be the same person as the carer incidentally).
To support Hospital Managers to meet their duties, the Welsh Government
have developed a series of leaflets.

All are available (in English and in Welsh) at:
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sites3/page.cfm?orqid=816&pid=33957

Page 34
30



A1.11 Rights of Children and Young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011

The purpose of this Measure is to impose a duty upon the Welsh Ministers and
the

First Minister to have due regard to the rights and obligations in the United
Nations

Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and its Optional Protocols,
when making decisions of a strategic nature about how to exercise functions
which are exercisable by them

http://www.assemblywales.org/bus-home/bus-legislation/bus-leg-
measures/businessleqislation-
measures-rightsofchildren.htm

A1.12 Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010

Part 2 of the Mental Health (Wales) Measure places statutory duties on mental
health service providers in Wales (LHBs and local authorities) to ensure that all
patients in secondary mental health services have a care and treatment plan of
a prescribed type, which is developed and reviewed, in partnership with the
patient, by a care coordinator. Regulations made under this Part of the
Measure require care coordinators to consult with certain other persons
(including the patient’s carer(s) in developing and reviewing care and
treatment plans, and that certain persons (again, including the patient’s
carer(s)) should be provided with a copy of the plan, or relevant parts of the
plan. The care coordinator has some discretion as to whether carers should be
consulted and receive copies where the patient has not given their consent,
against the patients wishes.

In addition, this legislation enables carer(s) to request a review of the patient’s
care and treatment plan if they believe that this is necessary (although the care
coordinator has some discretion as to whether a review is conducted following
such a request).

The Mental Health (Wales) Measure also places statutory duties on mental
health service providers to make certain information available to patients in
writing when they are discharged form secondary mental health services
(including the reason for their discharge, and the actions to be taken in the
event that the individual’s mental health should deteriorate at some point in the
future). Chapter 7 of the Draft Code of Practice which has been issued by the
Welsh Government to support this Part of the mental Health (Wales) Measure
states that service providers should consider providing this information to the
individual’s carer if it is believed that this would be appropriate and the
individual is in agreement.

For further information on the requirements of this legislation, see the Welsh
Government’'s Mental Health web pages:
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/health/nhswales/healthservice/mentalhealthservices/

?lang=en
Page 35

31



A1.13 The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC)
The Articles of particular relevance to Children as Young Carers are:

Article 3 In all actions concerning children, whether undertaken by public or
private social welfare institutions, courts of law, administrative authorities or
legislative bodies, the best interests of the child shall be a primary
consideration.

Article 12 States Parties shall assure to the child who is capable of forming his
or her own views the right to express those views freely in all matters affecting
the child, the views of the child being given due weight in accordance with the
age and maturity of the child.

Article 13 The child shall have the right to freedom of expression; this right
shall include freedom to seek, receive and impart information and ideas of all
kinds, regardless of frontiers, either orally, in writing or in print, in the form of
art, or through any other media of the child's choice.

Article 15 States Parties recognize the rights of the child to freedom of
association and to freedom of peaceful assembly.

Article 19 States Parties shall take all appropriate legislative, administrative,
social and 29 educational measures to protect the child from all forms of
physical or mental violence, injury or abuse, neglect or negligent treatment,
maltreatment or exploitation, including sexual abuse, while in the care of
parent(s), legal guardian(s) or any other person who has the care of the child.
Article 28 States Parties recognize the right of the child to education, and with
a view to achieving this right progressively and on the basis of equal
opportunity

Article 31 States Parties recognize the right of the child to rest and leisure, to
engage in play and recreational activities appropriate to the age of the child
and to participate freely in cultural life and the arts.

Article 36 States Parties shall protect the child against all other forms of
exploitation prejudicial to any aspects of the child's welfare.

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/childrenyoungpeople/publications/uncrcarticles/?lang
=en

A1.14 Work and Families Act 2006

This came into force in Wales in April 2007. It requires employers to consider

requests from people with caring responsibilities to work flexibly.
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/18/contents

Page 36
32



Appendix 2
Carer Information Leaflet — Title to be decided

Who is a Carer?

A carer is a person, of any age, who provides unpaid support to a family
member or friend who could not manage without their help. This could be
caring for a relative, partner, or friend who for example is ill, frail, disabled, or
has mental health or substance misuse problems. Carers may be juggling
paid work with their unpaid caring responsibilities. The term carer should not
be confused with a care worker, or care assistant, who receives payment for
looking after someone.

Taking Care of Yourself
Think about you!

e Don’t be afraid to ask for help.

e Let your GP know that you are a.carer; they may be able to arrange
additional support for you.

e Arrange to have a Carer's Needs Assessment.

o [f you work, tell your employer about your caring role as they may have
some measures that can be put in place to help you.

e Make contact with some of the organisations listed in this booklet.

e Try to develop and maintain your life away from being a carer.

e Expert Patient Programme Cymru runs a ‘Look after Me’ free health and
well being course, for anyone looking after someone with a long-term
condition please call ; & 01286 674236

About this booklet

You do not need to cope alone. There are many organisations who can offer
you practical help and emotional support. This booklet provides contact details
for local and national support organisations. If an organisation cannot help you
directly they can often put in touch with someone who can.

Carer Support

Local Carers Centres offer a wide range of services aimed at helping you as a

carer; whilst taking into account the needs of the person you are caring for.

They can also advise on services that your council provides. They are focused
Page 37

33



on getting you the right advice and support on issues connected with health,
emotional support, entittement, mobility equipment and training. Your local
contact number is listed below and their website address is: www.carers.org

Denbighshire: North East Wales Carers Information Service:
http://www.bungalowsoftware.com/phone_symbol85.gif @ 01745 331181

Flintshire: North East Wales Carers Information Service:
B8 01352 752525

Conwy: Carers Outreach Service:
B 01492 533714

Wrexham: Wrexham Carers Service:
01978 318812

Gwynedd: Carers Outreach Service:
01248 370797

Anglesey: Carers Outreach Service:
& 01248 722828

Carer’s Needs Assessment

If you are providing ‘regular and substantial’ care for someone, you have the
right to a Carer’s Needs Assessment. You don’t have to be living with or
related to the person you carefor. A Carer's Needs Assessment helps to
identify the effects that caring has on your life and lets you think about your
own needs. ltis carried out by Social Services (or on behalf of Social Services
by your local carer support centre) who will work with you, to discuss and plan
the support they can offer. This may be in the form of respite care, getting
help at'home, or other support that will help you to maintain your health and
wellbeing.

Members of your healthcare team (GP, district nurse, hospital staff etc) can
arrange a Carer’'s Needs Assessment for you. They may ask you if you would
like an assessment, but please enquire if you think you would benefit from one.
You can also contact your local Social Service direct on:

Denbighshire @ 01824 712900

Flintshire 01352 752525

Wrexham 01978 292066

Conway @ 01492 576333 Page 38
34



Gwynedd 01286 682888

Anglesey 01248 752752

Young Carers

If you are a young person caring for someone, there are local organisations
that can offer advice, support, short breaks and activities.

Denbighshire Young Carers: & 01745 331222
Flintshire Young Carers: 8 01352 755422
Wrexham Young Carers 01978 264040
Conwy Young Carers 01492 536091

Gwynedd & Ynys Mén Young Carers 01248 364614

Crossroads Care North Wales

Crossroads provides practical care and support. Their core service involves a
trained support worker coming into your home to give you a break.
Crossroads is a North Wales wide independent charity, with various local
branches. Some of the service may be chargeable. You can contact
Crossroads North Wales Head Office on: @ 01492 516435 or 0845 6050115

National Organisations

The Carers Trust : has designated websites for adults and young carers
offering information, advice and support. Both sites host discussion forums,
where carers can share their views and exchange information and tips with
other carers.

& : 08448004361 e-mail: info@carers.uk

web site: www.carers.org

Young Carers: is an online service for young carers run by the Carers Trust.
www.youngcarers.net

Page 39
35



Carers UK: offers information and advice on all aspects of caring.
www.carersuk.orqg

Putting Things Right

If you have concerns or feel unhappy with any aspect of the care provided by
the NHS, you should feel able to talk to somebody. It is important that the
NHS learns from the experiences of patients, friends and families, so that it
can try to put things right for you and for others.

As a first step, if you feel able to do so, it is best to talk with someone close to
the cause of your concern, such as a doctor, nurse, receptionist or practice
manager. It's often possible to sort out the problem straight away.

You may prefer to contact the Health Board’s Concern’s Team:

E-mail: ConcernsTeam.bcu@wales.nhs.uk

Post: Concerns Team
BCUHB

Ysbyty Gwynedd
Bangor

Gwynedd

LL57 2PW

3. 01248 384194

Betsi Cadwaladr Community Health Council (BCCHC)

The BCCHC is an independent ‘health watch dog’ for the NHS in North Wales.
It provides information on local health services and offers confidential advice

and assistance for people who have concerns or wish to make a complaint
about any aspect of the NHS. :&@ 01978 356178

Page 40
36



Appendix 3 List of carer support agencies

Page 41

37



Appendix 4

Baseline: Carers Information requirements

Information for carers of people with mental health problem

Information about the medication given to a patient and where

appropriate its potential side effects

General or specific information on medical condition/treatment in
accordance with patient confidentiality, the conditions and treatment of

the cared for person, including information on side effects of treatment

Information that assists children and young people to avoid taking on
inappropriate levels of caring and signposts. them to sources of

assistance

Accessible information and signposting to information on the availability,

entitlement to and sources of local and national support including:
v' Short breaks / Respite care
v' Carers Needs Assessments
v Direct Payments
v__Housing Support
v Independent Advocacy
v* Counselling including bereavement support
v' Guardianship (where appropriate)
v' The work of the Court of Protection (where appropriate)
v' Age appropriate support groups

v’ Culturally specific support groups

Page 42
38



v' Financial advice and support, including information about the
availability of financial support through the benefits and tax credits

system
v' Managing the financial and other affairs of cared for persons

v' Any other information and support available to help support carers

in their caring role

Information or signposting to information and advice on employment

provisions, including flexible working
Information on:

v’ the range of Social Services functions available to carers and cared-

for persons
v’ care planning for the person cared for

v medicines management, safe handling, moving and lifting and other

matters relating to the care of the person cared for

Inform carers of local concessionary or other transport schemes and
patient transport arrangements, to enable them to attend NHS

appointments with the cared for person

Information and support on aids and adaptations including Telecare and

Telehealth services and the waiting times one can expect for such items

Information on the regulation and inspection of services, i.e. the work of
Healthcare Inspectorate Wales and the Care and Social Services

Inspectorate for Wales

Signpost carers on to a local carer support agency and to appropriate
national organisations supporting patients, users and carers for specific

conditions

Information on hospital admission avoidance
Page 43

39



Information, advice and support on the availability of suitable local
services, the quality and range of provision and how to choose and

arrange provision of these services

Information on the availability of crisis support and how to access it
Information on the availability of re-ablement and intermediate care
Help promote health and wellbeing for the carer and person(s) cared for

Information on the organisation’s complaints procedures and those of the

Public Service Ombudsman for Wales
Information for carers who wish to stop their caring role

Signposting to appropriate programmes of support and learning, these

may include training on:
v’ safe lifting, moving and handling

v medicines management -including the safe administration of

medication to the cared for person
v’ relevant nursing skills
v use of aids and adaptations
v’ _continence care
v _stress management
v’ help with eating and drinking
v dealing with the behavioural aspects of the cared for person

v' helping carers to look after themselves

Page 44
40



Training Framework — Appendix 5

| CARERS MEASURE — IDENTIFICATION, INFORMATION, SUPPORT AND CONSULTATION |

| CARERS MEASURES - EDUCATIONAL FRAMEWORK" |

Level 1
CARER AWARE

Target Audience

All frontline staff NHS/LA
Third Sector staff and
volunteers

Undergraduate programmes

Outcomes

Able to define what is a
Threr
Able to identify and
(Mecognise carers their issues
(-l?_lble to signpost accordingly

Delivered by
BCUHB lead

LA Trainers
Third Sector staff

Mode of delivery

E — learning
PowerPoint template
presentation

Level 2
CARER IDENTIFICATION AND
SUPPORT

Target Audience

Qualified Staff (all disciplines)
BCUHB/LA/3™ Sector
Independent contractors/GPs

»
»

Outcomes

Builds on level 1

Able to provide information or
signpost in relation to ongoing
care/discharge planning care
issues e.g.

Safe lifting

Help with eating and drinking
Hygiene

Administering Meds
Confidentiality

Delivered by
BCUHB Lead
LA Trainers
Third sector

Mode of learning

Classroom based integrated into
other programmes

E - learning

Level 3
COMPLEX NEEDS AND CARING

Target Audience

Discharge Liaison Team, Matrons,
Ward Sisters specific service staff
e.g. Paediatric staff, reablement

staff

Outcomes

Builds on level 1 and 2

Staff able to plan for complex caring
issues including young carers
sensory impairment, home
ventilation, deteriorating cognitive
impairment,

Aware of and know how to refer to
Third sector agencies

Carer burden/burnout issues
POVA/POCA issues

Delivered by
BCUHB Lead
LA Trainers
Third sector

Mode of learning
Classroom based initiatives
E - learning

CARING FOR CARERS

Target Audience
Actual Carers

Outcomes

Carers educated and able
to undertake safely, their
caring role feeling
supported and empowered.
e.g. manual handling,
nutrition and hydration, skin
care, self care, welfare
rights

Delivered by
BCUHB lead/ EPP
Local Authorities
Carers Centre
Mode of learning
Information sessions
Printed literature
Web page

* This framework has been adapted from the model used at Cardiff UHB




9t abed

NARRATIVE TO ACCOMPANY FRAMEWORK
Level 1 Carer Aware

This programme would be aimed at all BCUHB staff. Local Authority, third sector staff and volunteers, contractors who have the interest
in carers’ issues. Outcomes of the programme would be to

e Able to define what is a carer is

e Able to identify and recognise carers issues

e Able to signpost accordingly

The course would be delivered as part of induction/mandatory training, integrated into other training opportunities and within primary care
settings. Delivered through e learning, and or a corporately agreed PowerPoint presentation.

Level 2 Carer Identification and support

This programme would be targeted at Qualified Staff from all disciplines in theHealth Board, Third sector managers and relevant Local
Authority Staff
Independent contractors/GPs. The aim of the programme would be to

e ensure staff are able to signpost or provide information

e involve cares in relation to ongoing care/discharge planning care issues

e signpost carers to education and training regarding

= Safe lifting

* Help with eating and drinking
= Hygiene

» Administering Medicines

Confidentiality

Delivered by BCUHB Lead, LA Trainers, Third sector via Classroom based programmes which have been integrated into existing work
streams integrated into other programmes yet to be identified, and via e —learning

Level 3 Complex needs and caring
This programme would be for staff who are working closely with people who are undertaking complex caring roles. For example caring

for those with physical and mental health issues requiring a high level of skill to maintain those cared for in their own environments.
42



) abed

The programme would build on level 1 and 2, and be delivered by BCUHB Lead, LA Trainers, and the Third sector, via Classroom based
initiatives and E - learning.

CARING FOR CARERS

Is a programme delivered for carers to enable them to fulfil their caring role to the best of their ability, taking into account their own health
issues. The outcomes would be that Carers feel educated and able to undertake safely, their caring role, feel supported and empowered.
The content of the programme may include issues such as manual handling, nutrition and hydration, skin care, self care, welfare rights. It

would integrate and enhance existing programmes such as the EPP. Delivered by BCUHB / EPP, Local Authorities, Carers Centre via
Information sessions, Printed literature and development of WebPages.

43



Reporting Framework — Appendix 6

4 BCUHB h 4 Local Joint Strategic Boards R
Board / Executive (eg HSCWB Boards)
Clinical Programme Groups/Localities Inc. Health (Corporate Support), LAs,
Corporate Support Functions Third Sector, CHCs, Public Health
- § / N /
A 4
BCUHB
- Carers Strategies (Wales) 4 N
Measure 2010 — Project
& Board North Wales Adult
@ oar North Wales Carers Strategic Group Services Heads
IS ]
oo 7}
- J
BCUHB Carers Strategy \
Operational Group Local Carers Strategy / Planning\
4 ) Groups (inc. Third Sector)
Carer Forums — Generic \((Brx;nl\éldog
& Condition Specific Conwy
Denbighshire
- J Flintshire
\_ Wrexham )

44




To comment on the content of this draft strategy or to seek further information; you can contact Dawn Cooper,
Head of Service User Experience. & 01978 727432, or email dawn.cooper@wales.nhs.uk

61 obed



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES

SUBJECT: ADULT PROTECTION REPORT APRIL 2011 TO
MARCH 2012

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To inform Members about activity and developments within Adult
Safeguarding over the year, specifically Adult Protection and
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.

1.02 To inform Members of the annual Adult protection statistics for
Flintshire.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 In 2000, the Welsh Assembly government published a statutory
guidance document, ‘In Safe Hands’. Which said ‘Authorities should
draw up an annual report to their committees about their work in
relation to Adult Protection. The National Assembly for Wales wiill
expect to see this information being collected, collated and, most
importantly, used in developing practice and services’. This is the
annual Protection of Vulnerable Adults’ report for the year April 2011
to March 2012.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 The year saw a total of 250 Adult Protection referrals received by
Social Services for Adults. Of these, 186 progressed to a full
investigation and 64 referrals were screened and were dealt with by
the relevant Team Manager. This figure compares with 212 cases
reported in the year 2010 — 2011. It shows that the trend of annual
increase in Adult Protection referrals is continuing, as can be seen in
Table 1. This increase in referrals reflects the increased awareness of
adults safeguarding in society, prompted by high profile cases such as
Winterbourne View case in Bristol. In Flintshire, we also work hard to
increase the awareness of adult protection amongst all operational
teams and the public.

Year of Referrals
2011 - 2012 250
2010 - 2011 212
2009 - 2010 190
2008 - 2009 128
2007 - 2008 141

Page 51



3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00
4.01

5.00
5.01

6.00
6.01

7.00
7.01

8.00
8.01

2006 - 2007 103
2005 - 2006 76
2004 - 2005 40
Table 1: Annual rates of Adult Protection referrals in Flintshire
The graphs presented at Appendix 2 give a breakdown of numbers,
types of referrals and outcomes. The highest number of referrals (38)
came from Social Services provider services, followed by independent
providers (37). This shows the vital role that care staff in residential
and domiciliary settings have in identifying and reporting suspected
abuse.

County Referrals received
Anglesey 154
Conwy 375
Denbighshire 244
Flintshire 250
Gwynedd 166
Wrexham 335

Table 2: Comparative Adult Protection referral rates across North Wales 2011 - 2012

Table 2 shows the number of Adult Protection referrals received for the
six counties across North Wales for the year 2011 — 2012. It can be
seen that in Flintshire there was a lower than average rate of referral
(the average figure across North Wales was 23 per 10,000
population).

The next twelve months will see significant change in the way adults
at risk are safeguarded both nationally and within Flintshire. The
Social Services Bill will affect the coordination of, and priority given to,
adult safeguarding at a strategic level across the country. Within
Flintshire, the creation of a dedicated Adult Safeguarding Unit will
enable Social Services for Adults to further develop and improve
safeguarding for adults at risk.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members consider Flintshire’s Annual Adult Protection
Monitoring Report for the period April 2011 to March 2012.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

A pressure bid has been agreed by Council for an additional £45k for
2012 - 2013, with full year effect of £90k for future years.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Adult Protection Procedures address the financial abuse of vulnerable
adults.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
None arising from this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT
Effective Adult Protection Procedures ensure that vulnerable adults in

Page 52



9.00
9.01

10.00
10.01

11.00
11.01

12.00
12.01

Flintshire have the same rights as other residents to enjoy a life free
from abuse.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Additional funding will enable staffing levels within the Safeguarding
Unit to be increased. A second Adult Safeguarding Manager will be
appointed, along with an additional administrative support post, and
social work support.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED
None required.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Members of the Flintshire Adult Protection Committee include senior
representation from most of the agencies signed up to Adult
Protection Procedures. It includes the Betsi Cadwaladr University
Health Board, North Wales Police, and the independent sector, and
they have been made aware of the content of this report.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Annual Report
Appendix 2 — Statistical Analysis

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: Christopher Phillips
Telephone: 01352 701459
Email: christopher_phillips@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Appendix 1 —Adult Safeguarding Annual Report — April 2011 to March 2012

1.0
1.1

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Purpose of Report

In 2000, the Welsh Assembly Government published a statutory guidance
document, ‘In Safe Hands’, which said ‘Authorities should draw up an annual
report to their committees about their work in relation to Adult Protection. The
National Assembly for Wales will expect to see this information being
collected, collated and, most importantly, used in developing practice and
services’. This is the annual Protection of Vulnerable Adults report for the
year April 2011 to March 2012.

Adult Safeguarding

Adult Safeguarding ensures that vulnerable adults are able to retain
independence, well-being and choice, and that they can live their lives free
from abuse or neglect.

In Flintshire, the Adult Safeguarding Manager is responsible for coordinating
safeguarding work, including the Protection of Vulnerable Adults (POVA),
social work for vulnerable adults, Mental Capacity Act issues and the
implementation of the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.

A page on the Council’s Infonet site has been created, giving staff access to a
wide range of resources and documents relating to the Protection of
Vulnerable Adults, the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, and the Mental
Capacity Act 2005. The Flintshire County Council website page on
Safeguarding has also been updated.

Protection of Vulnerable Adults (POVA)

The Protection of Vulnerable Adults process, or POVA, is the national system
in place to protect all vulnerable adult client groups from abuse and to support
them to seek treatment and redress in the event that they have been abused.
Social Services Departments take the lead role in coordinating the
development of local policy guidance, but all agencies are to ‘work
cooperatively on the identification, investigation, treatment and prevention of
abuse of vulnerable adults’ [In Safe Hands, 2000].

A vulnerable adult is defined in ‘In Safe Hands’ as a person over 18 years of
age who ‘Is or may be in need of community care services by reason of
mental or other disability, age or illness and who is or may be unable to take
care of him or herself, or unable to protect him or herself against significant
harm or serious exploitation’.

Adult Social Services’ Departments are responsible for chairing
Adult Protection Strategy meetings and Case Conferences, a role taken on in
Flintshire by Team Managers or the Adult Safeguarding Manager. Social
Services for Adults also take responsibility under ‘In Safe Hands' for
coordinating, monitoring and evaluating the inter-agency Adult Protection
process. This includes providing training for in-house and external staff in
using the procedures, producing information leaflets and providing the Welsh
Government with Adult Protection statistics.

Abuse is defined as a ‘Violation of an individual’s human and civil rights by any
other person or persons’.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$etwbcaq5.doc

age 1 of 5

age 55



Appendix 1 —Adult Safeguarding Annual Report — April 2011 to March 2012

4.0
41

4.2

4.3

5.0
5.1

5.2

6.0
6.1

6.2

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) were introduced in April 2009.
The Safeguards are part of the Mental Capacity Act 2005, and were
introduced to provide legal protection for vulnerable people who are in care
homes or in hospital and who lack the mental capacity to consent to be in the
care setting. Any care home or hospital, treating or caring for a person in such
a way that they believe they are depriving that person of their liberty, is now
required to seek authority to do so.

Deprivations of Liberty are assessed by the relevant Supervisory Body, a role
which Flintshire Social Services for Adults carries out for people who are in
care homes and who are ordinarily resident in the county. Seven Best
Interests Assessors have been appointed by the Department to carry out the
assessments required by the Safeguards, a function which the Assessors
carry out in addition to their other responsibilities as senior Social Workers in
the Department.

Fifteen Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards assessments were dealt with by
Social Services for Adults between April 2011 and March 2012, in care homes
in Flintshire and in neighbouring Authorities. This was a decrease from 25
referrals the previous year. Eight requests came from care homes outside
Flintshire, seven from homes within the county. Authorisations were issued in
seven cases, with the other referrals being assessed as not meeting the
threshold for authorisation.

Mental Capacity Act 2005

The Mental Capacity and Best Interests Procedure was launched in 2011 to
give staff guidance and direction in the use of the Mental Capacity Act 2005.
If a vulnerable adult lacks the mental capacity to make a decision, the Act
expects that any decisions are made in the person’s best interests, and that
statutory agencies work with the individual and their family. The Procedure
gives guidance on assessing a person’s mental capacity to make a particular
decision, and on ensuring that decisions are made in the best interests of the
individual.

The Adult Safeguarding Manager supports the implementation of the Mental
Capacity Act by offering advice to teams about specific cases and chairs
formal multi-agency Best Interests meetings in the most complex cases.

National, Regional and Local Developments

The year has seen a number of significant developments which will raise the
national profile of Adult Protection. Key amongst these are Welsh
Government proposals for the future of Adult Safeguarding and the publication
of new All-Wales Adult Protection Procedures.

Chapter 4 of the Social Services Bill Consultation Document set out the Welsh
Government’s proposals for the future of Safeguarding. These include:

Establishing a national Independent Safeguarding Board for adults and
children.

Setting up six regional Adult Protection Boards to run parallel to Children’s
Safeguarding Boards.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$etwbcaq5.doc

Page b6



Appendix 1 —Adult Safeguarding Annual Report — April 2011 to March 2012

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

7.0
71

Introducing a coherent legal framework for adult safeguarding, to ensure that
agencies can be seen to respond to alleged abuse against adults in the same
consistent, coordinated and robust way as they would against the alleged
abuse of a child.

Introducing the term ‘adult at risk’ to replace ‘vulnerable adult’, which
consultation groups have suggested is an unwelcome label.

Ensuring that all agencies encompassed in the legal framework will, upon
being alerted to suspected abuse, be required to, or cause others to make
enquiries and undertake appropriate action to protect an adult defined as
being at risk. At the moment, only Social Services Departments have a
statutory responsibility to adhere to adult safeguarding procedures.

It is anticipated that the broadening of definitions outlined within the BiIll,
together with an increasing public profile of adult safeguarding issues, will
result in an increase in adult safeguarding referrals. Social Services
Departments will continue with their responsibility of coordinating the adult
safeguarding process.

In light of this background, a pressure bid was submitted and agreed by
Council for an additional £45,000 for 2012 — 2013 with full year effect of
£90,000 for future years.

The new Adult Safeguarding Unit will ensure the robust implementation and
operation of adult safeguarding policies and procedures, including Mental
Capacity Act issues, domestic violence forums and public protection matters.

Resources will consist of two Adult Safeguarding Managers, two
administrators and social work support.

The role of the Flintshire Adult Protection Committee will be reviewed in the
light of the changes proposed in the Social Services Bill.

Adult Protection Statistics 2011 — 2012

The year saw a total of 250 Adult Protection referrals received by Flintshire
Social Services for Adults. Of these, 186 progressed to a full investigation and
64 referrals were screened and were dealt with by the relevant Team
Manager. This figure compares with 212 cases reported in the year 2010 -
2011. It shows that the trend of annual increase in Adult Protection referrals is
continuing, as can be seen in Table 1.

Year Total Number of
Referrals
2011 - 2012 250
2010 - 2011 212
2009 - 2010 190
2008 - 2009 128
2007 - 2008 141
2006 - 2007 103
2005 - 2006 76
2004 - 2005 40

Table 1: Annual rates of Adult Protection referrals in Flintshire

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$etwbcaq5.doc

age 3 of 5

age 57



Appendix 1 —Adult Safeguarding Annual Report — April 2011 to March 2012

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.0
8.1

8.2

8.3

9.0
9.1

The graphs presented at Appendix 2 give a breakdown of numbers, types of
referrals and outcomes. The highest number of referrals (38) came from
Social Services provider services, followed by independent providers (37).
This shows the vital role that care staff in residential and domiciliary settings
have in identifying and reporting suspected abuse.

As in previous years, women over 65 are by far most likely to be the alleged
victim in Adult Protection referrals. In 2011 - 2012 there were 51 referrals
made for women over 65. This population group also makes up the highest
proportion of clients of Social Services for Adults. The victims are most likely
to be living in their own homes in the community when the alleged abuse
takes place, and the allegation is most likely to be one of physical abuse.

At the conclusion of each investigation a record is made of the outcome of the
process. In 45 of the 186 cases which were investigated, no abuse was found
at the end of the process, but in cases where there may have been abuse,
One-hundred and seventeen investigations led to risks being reduced or
removed. In eight cases, the alleged victim refused any safeguarding action
and in the other 16 cases, outcomes included extra support for care providers
and increased monitoring by a care manager.

Table 2 shows the number of Adult Protection referrals received for the six
counties across North Wales for the year 2011-2012. It can be seen that in
Flintshire there was a lower than average rate of referral (the average figure
across North Wales was 23 per 10,000 population).

County Referrals received
Anglesey 154
Conwy 375
Denbighshire 244
Flintshire 250
Gwynedd 166
Wrexham 335

Table 2: Comparative Adult Protection referral rates across North Wales 2011 — 2012
Training

Between April 2011 and the end of March 2012, monthly training sessions
were delivered by the Social Services for Adults Workforce Development
Team to staff from within Flintshire County Council and also to the
independent care provider sector. One-hundred and twenty-seven people
attended Level 2 (Introductory) training and 58 people attended Level 3
(Advanced).

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board has continued to deliver a
programme of in-house training to Health staff, and this can be linked to an
increase in the number of referrals coming from Health Board colleagues.

Thirty-eight care home owners and senior members of care home staff
attended awareness training in the use of the Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards in 2011 — 2012.

Conclusions

The year has seen the highest number of Adult Protection referrals since
recording began in 2004.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$etwbcaq5.doc

Page 58



Appendix 1 —Adult Safeguarding Annual Report— April 2011 to March 2012

9.2 A comprehensive training programme has been delivered by Social Services,
and by Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, and this increased
awareness, along with a greater public profile for adult safeguarding, can be
seen to have influenced the increase in referral rates.

9.4 The next twelve months will see significant change in the way adults at risk
are safeguarded both nationally and within Flintshire. The Social Services Bill
will affect the coordination of, and priority given to, adult safeguarding at a
strategic level across the country. Within Flintshire the creation of a dedicated
Adult Safeguarding Unit will enable Social Services for Adults to further
develop and improve safeguarding for adults at risk.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$etwbcaq5.doc
age 5 of 5

age 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Appendix 2 — Statistical Analysis 2011 - 2012

Number of Completed Investigations = 186
Number of Inappropriate Referrals = 64

70

Total = 250

65

65 64

60

55

50 ~
45 -
40 -
35 ~
30
25 A
20 ~
15 -
10 -

45

25

18-64 yrs 65 & Over Inappropriate
Referral

O Male
B Female
O Inappropriate Referral

Pade 61



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

= 186

Source of Referral

12y10

(34 + sjooysg) uoneonpy

suoisuad 9 YJopn jo ydag

8)Je20ApY

Aouaby Japinoiad

(MIH
10 AISSO) 10je|nbay alen

BuisnoH

gaH1/Aunwwog/Arewnd
‘yjreaH

991A19G doueNqUIY

leyidsoH ‘yjjeaH

931j0d

19pIAOId ASS

1abeuepy aied dss

pualij/oAne|ay

wioIA pabajy

Page’*62



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Case Status = 186

120

110

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

Closed

2
[=
=
o

(&
e
[}
(=
=)
(]

Open/Active
Open, Review Only
Not Previously Known

Padge 63



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

431 (attendees)

Attended Strateqy Meeting

110

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

12Y10

uoieanpg Jayun4uonesnps

(A103n3e)S)3)RI0APY
Ayoedeq jejuapy Juspuadapu

9)e20ApY

(Aouabyyyauag)suoisuagiiopnidag

Kouaby Japinoid

MIH/MISSO(s)1030adsu|(s)iaje|nbay

BuisnoH

9dljod

gH1/Aunwwoy/Arewnd‘yyesy

leydsoH‘yyeaH

(19p1noad)ass

(syoenuon)ass

(12Beuepy a1en)ass

Bunoeo\ ON

Page*64



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Main Cateqory of Vulnerability =

Older Person

° n > 4= o
§ ] (] = = 3 124
= re) = c 2 S a 3
c © = o £ b o= 2
= ] o Io © St s
- 2 o - - ] k=
= o K] o = O
= 0 © © (] [
© — w- O ==H © £ o
- > (=) S x o S < Q c
s © ;) o o sd’g’ II_U ©
2 S £ = Eo 2 13
> 2 £ g E E
& 5 3 £ @
S o 3 =
11]

CMale 18 - 64 B Male 65 & Over (DOFemale 18 - 64 COFemale 65 & Over

Page 65



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Normal Place of Residence = 186

120

110

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

Y10

oo1dsoH

juapuadapuj jepdsoH

SHN |eydsoH

a9e|d [elJUBPISOY-dWOH die)

aoe|d BuisinN-awoH a1e)H

awayos Juswade|d }npy

Aoueusa] pauoddng

(uapaepp)uonepowiioddy
paJajjeys

SWOH SaAne|oy

Alunwwo) ui BWoH umQ

Page®66



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

= 186

Places Alleged Abuse Occurred

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

12410

9Je|d d1gqnd

Juawysijqesy uoyeanpy

aleq Aeq

Jojenyadiad pabaj|y Jo awoH

991dsoH

awoH dnoug jsni] SHN

juapuadapu| jeydsoH

SHN |eydsoH

aoe|d a)dsay ‘SaWwoH aie)H

aoe|d BuisinN‘awoH alen

aoe|d [eljuUBPISaY SWOH ale)

Aoueua] pauoddng

(uapJlepn) uonepOWIWIOIDY PaIdYBYS

SWOH S,9A1R|9Y

Alunwwon ul aWoH umQ

Pade 67



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Types of Alleged Abuse = 226

65

55

45

35

25

15

X
[«
n

Financ
Negl

Emotional/Psychologi

O Male 18-64 M Male 65 & Over [0 Female 18-64 (OFemale 65 & Over

Page®68




E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

=218

Person(s) Alleged to be Responsible for Abuse

21

asnqe pajoadsns
| |enjoe Jo p10o2al SNOIAdId

10

18410

umouwjun uosiad

inoqybiaN

aouejulenboy/spuali4

19Y)0-anne|ay

juosed

me]

-ujeyybneqjuog-aaneay

13

Jauped/a)M/PUBGSNH

EYNICIEN]

19sn 991AI9G Jayjouy

0.

> Jjejs predun/iaajunjop
oakojdwz
471 10 jJudwhed 10a11q

D

JJe)S S99IAISS [e120S

jJjels 1030ag jJuspuadapuy

Jels SHN

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

O Male B Female O0Both O Unknown

Padge 69



82

b= E S9JIAISS |e100S @ Y)|eaH

o | 1030adsujuoje|nbay g ad1j0d

Jo)oadsujioyenbay
R 321]0d ‘S9IIAIAS [BID0S
Jo)oadsujioyenboy
@ S9JIAIAS |eID0S

10

991]0d '@ S9DIAISS [BID0S

18

Y10

14

lapinoid

Pag€e®70

w [ Isnil SHN‘YllesH

o Il gHT‘udeeH

< | [ 103)09dsuj/i0jenbay

10

9dljod

S S S RS SNSRI, s®d1AIBS [ero0S

& 3 pajebnysaAu| JoN

90

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc
85

Type of Investigator(s) = 186

) ) ) )
o n [=] n o n o
(3] N N - -

80
75
70
65
60
55
50
45
40
35



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Status of Allegation — Total = 186

c
2
o

o

<

x
c

9
5
©
=

2

<

Admitted
Proved ¢

Disproved

Inconclusive

Unlikely on Balance of
Probability

O Male 18-64 B Male 65&0ver OFemale 18-64 [0 Female 65&0ver

Page 71

Likely on Balance of

Probability



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

=210

Investigation Outcomes for Alleged Victim

19

15

20

17

lay30

wndIA

=Gl = paba||v Aq pasnjay uonoy

& uonody oN

nm S99IAI9G a1k [euonIppyY

& uoljepowwoddy

paBueyd wnoiA pabaly
I uonyesuadwon saunluj
Jeuiwia) 104 uonesijddy

0

D

& 3N0J J0j uonjesedaid

VY

> SWOIA Jayl0 Bunssy

VY

b Joddng wijoIA 10} paLIdjay

s}

b Bulj]osuno) 10} pallajey

m < | joddng dapinougd

Jabeuepy

alen Aq Buiiojiuopy paseasou|

ue|d 91eD/U0108}0Id INPY

14

panosdw/paonpay sysiy

paAoway ysiy

(punoy

asnqe ou)sjqedijddy jJoN

65

60

55

50

20 -

OFemale 65&0ver

B Male 65&0ver OFemale 18-64

OMale 18-64

Pag€e?72



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

=203

Outcomes/Recommendations for Person(s) Alleged to be Responsible for Abuse

UJ

oL

40

19

19

14

15

H

70

65

60 -

55

50 -

45

40 -

35

30 -

25 -

20 -

15

1PYyo

uonody oN

(198N
99IAJAS J|)92Ualdjuon asen

(1219 J)) d]aH eAIX3

Apog
|euoissajoid 03 Jurejdwon

Bunsi] VAOd 10} paiiajey

uonnes adljod

uonnodasoid

passiwsiq

pakojdapay

Areuydiosiq

uoisiaIadng eayxg

Buiulel] esx3

Yo/paubisay

pajesauoxy

(punog
asnqy oN)a|qediddy joN

Padge 73



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Outcomes for Service Provider Agency = 188

98

Y10

S3101|0d PasIAay

uonoy Jayng oN

34

0002 39V Spiepue)s aten
Japun uonesysibay uo uoneuep

0002C 10V splepuelg
alen Japun uonnoasoid

Pag€e“74

0002
JOV Sspiepue)s ale) Japuf 99130N

BuliIoyUO\ pasealou|

44

(punog asnqy oN)ajqedlddy JoN

120

115

110

105
100

( 1 1 r 1 [ { [ | |

T T T T T T T T T T T

N O Vu O v O v o uvuw o u o
N O < < ® ® N N ™



12y30

45

uoyoy Jayung oN

M3IADY 9Se) SNOoLIdS

sloseyaind 1aYyjQ pauuioyu|

Japinouad abueyn

uonesyioadg/oenuon pasindy

sjuswaoe|d papuadsng

spienbajeg paroidwy

20

BulIo}UO\ pasealou|

105

(punojasnqgyoN)ajqediddy JoN

120
115
110
105
100
95
90
85
80
75
70
65
60
55
50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

Outcomes for Service Commissioner(s) = 190

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Pade 75



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\9\7\2\Al00002279\$5d03zwlc.doc

Ethnic Grou

= 186

uojjewIojul pasnyay

umouy| Jou uibuo s1uy}g

1Yo

asaulyn

punoubyoeq yoe|q Jayjo Auy

ueosLyy

ueaqquied

punoibyoeq ueisy 4ayjQ Auy

1ysope|bueg

uejsiyed

ueipu

punoubyoeq paxiw Jayjo Auy

ueisy pue spym

uedLYY 39€|q Pue SHYM

ueaqqued ¥9e|q pue SHYM

punoubyoeq ajym aayjo Auy

ysH| SYM

ysnug AYM




Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT BY: LEARNING AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW &

SCRUTINY FACILITATOR

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Social & Health Care
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Items feed into a committee’s Forward Work programme from a number of
sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny
committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be
referred by the Executive for consultation purposes, or by County Council,
or from Directors. Other possible items are identified from the Executive
Work Programme and the Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
Are there issues of weak or poor performance?

How, where and why were the issues identified?

Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any
evidence of this? Is there evidence of public dissatisfaction?

. Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Have inspections been carried out?

Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review?

hOON=

NOoO o

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to
determine the Forward Work Programme of the committees of which they
are Members. By reviewing and prioritising the forward work programme
Members are able to ensure it is member-led and includes the right
issues. A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix
1 for Members’ consideration.

Page 77



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee considers its Forward Work Programme (attached as
Appendix 1).

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

6.00 ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

None arising directly from this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None arising directly from this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

None arising directly from this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Not applicable

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Draft Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Minutes of previous meetings of the committee.
Contact Officer: Margaret Parry-Jones

Telephone: 01352 702427
Email: margaret_parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 78



Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme

APPENDIX 1

g/ abed

Services

DRAFT
Date Item Purpose of Report/Session Scrutiny Focus Responsible/ Submission
Contact Officer Deadline
17 December | Integrated Family Support | To receive a report on the draft Pre-decision scrutiny | Director of
Service proposals. Community
Services
3 December
Performance Reporting to | To consider quarterly Performance 8'(;‘:10%0‘:;;{
include Transforming performance Outturns against Monitoring Services y
Social Services for Adults | directorate indicators
update Director of
, . . Community
Update on Adult Social To receive a progress report on | Policy review / Services
Care Transport Policy the implementation of the monitoring
Transport Policy
)
Director of
Update on Llys Jasmin To receive a progress report on | Progress monitoring Community
! the Llys Jasmine Extra Care Services
) project in Mold
: : To advise members of the outcome | Information item
Fost I tion 2012 ;
ostering Inspection of this year's CSSIW Inspection of Director of
our Fostering Service Community
Services
CSSIW Annual Letter To advise members of CSSIW Information item :
Annual letter and response to Director qf
Community
ACRF. .
Services
- Progress Monitoring
Mental Health Measure To receive an update on the Director of
update measure Community




nQ abed

Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme APPENDIX 1
Date Item Purpose of Report/Session Scrutiny Focus Responsible/ Submission
Contact Officer Deadline
24 January Drug & Alcohol Team To receive a report on the work of | Awareness raising Director of
2013 the Drug & Alcohol Team Community 10 January
Services
gg ﬁIW Inspection Action To receive a progress report Progress monitoring Director of
Community
Services
Safeguarding and Child To receive a report from the Monitoring report Director of
protection Safeguarding unit Community
Services
’ Family Placement Team | To inform Members of the outcomes _ Director of
Review of the review. Service development Community
Services
; 28 January Budget meeting Director of
Community
Services
28 February | Annual Council Reporting To consider the final draft of the Pre-decision scrutiny Director of
2013 Framework Annual report. Community
Services
14 February
Directorate and Service To consider the Community Service | Service development Director of
Plans Directorate and Service Plans Community
Services
Public Law Outline, To receive an update on the
Supervised Contact implementation of the public Law Progress monitoring Director of
Arrangements and update | Outline, Evaluation of Supervised Community
Contact arrangements and update Services

on Restructure of Frontline
Fieldwork

on restructure of frontline fieldwork.




19 abed

Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme APPENDIX 1
Date Item Purpose of Report/Session Scrutiny Focus Responsible/ Submission
Contact Officer Deadline
21 March Educational attainment of | To receive the annual Performance Director of 7 March
2013 Looked After Children educational attainment report. Monitoring Lifelong Learning
Joint Children and Young To provide Members with the Progress report Director of
Meeting People Partnership annual Update Lifelong
With Learning/Director
Lifelong of Community
Learning Services
Local Safeguarding To receive an update report on Progress report Director of CS
Children’s Board the work of the Board Director of LL
) Corporate Parenting To provide an update to Monitoring report Director of CS
Activity Update including Members on the progress in
Access to Action Card implementing the Corporate
) update Parenting Action Plan.
Families First To provide an update to Progress report Director of CS
Members as agreed at Director of LL
Committee on 5 January 2012
Young Carers To inform Members of the work | Information report Director of CS
being undertaken with young Director of LL

carers across Flintshire
directorates.




Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme

APPENDIX 1

reporting

scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring

Date Item Purpose of Report/Session Scrutiny Focus Responsible/ Submission
Contact Officer Deadline
11 April Q3 Performance To enable Members to fulfil their | Performance Director of 28 March
Reporting scrutiny role in relation to Monitoring Community
performance monitoring Services
Emergency Duty Team To receive an update on the joint | Performance ggﬁqcr;ol:nci’{y
Update Wrexham, Flintshire & Monitoring Services
Denbighshire Emergency Duty
Team based in Wrexham
Third Sector To be agreed following Partnership Working Facilitator
5’ discussions with Flintshire Local
L% Voluntary Council
N
9 May Comments, Compliments | To receive the Annual report Performance Monitoring 25 April
and Complaints
Transition update To update Members on the work
of the Transition team.
20 June BCUHB Half-yearly meeting with Betsi Partnership working Facilitator 6 June
Cadwaladr University Health
Board representatives.
To enable Members to fulfil their
Q4/Year end performance Performance Monitoring | Facilitator




Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme APPENDIX 1
Date Item Purpose of Report/Session Scrutiny Focus Responsible/ Submission
Contact Officer Deadline
25 July Rota Visits activity and To receive a report outlining rota Monitoring Director of
outcomes visit activity and outcomes during Community 11 July
the last municipal year. Services

€8 abed

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED

Youth Justice Service update report

Regular Iltems

Responsible / Contact
Month Item Purpose of Report Officer
Quarterly | Performance Information To consider quarterly performance outturns against Director of Community
directorate indicators Services
To provide Members with statistical Director of Community
January Safeguarding & Child Protection | information in relation to Child Protection and Services
Safeguarding
March Educational Attainment of Education officers offered to share the annual Directpr of Lifelong
Looked After Children educational attainment report which goes to Lifelong | Learning
Learning OSC with this Committee
March Corporate Parenting Report to Social & Health and Lifelong Learning Director of Community
Overview & Scrutiny Services
June Health, Social Care & Wellbeing | Update report Director of Community
Strategy Services




78 abed

Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme APPENDIX 1
Responsible / Contact
Month Item Purpose of Report Officer
June/ Betsi Cadwaladr University To maintain 6 monthly meetings — partnership Chief Executive/
December | Health Board Update working Sheila Wentworth/
Facilitator
June/July | Foster Care To receive an update on the recruitment and retention | Director of Community
of Flintshire’s Foster Carers. Services
May Comments, Compliments and To consider the Annual Report. Director of Community
Complaints Services
September | Protecting Vulnerable Adults & To inform Members of the annual adult protection Director of Community

Inspection Action Plan Update

monitoring report submitted to the Welsh Assembly
and to monitor progress of CSSIW Inspection Action
Plan

Services




	Agenda
	4 North Wales (Draft) Information and Consultation Carers Strategy
	Enc. 1 for North Wales (Draft) Information and Consultation Carers Strategy
	Enc. 2 for North Wales (Draft) Information and Consultation Carers Strategy

	5 Adult Protection Report April 2011 to March 2012
	Enc. 1 for Adult Protection Report April 2011 to March 2012
	Enc. 2 for Adult Protection Report April 2011 to March 2012

	6 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for General Template (all other Committees) for Forward Work Programme


